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DIRECTORS REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Twenty Fourth

Annual Report together with the Audited Statement of

Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2014. The

Management Discussion and Analysis has also been

incorporated into this Report.

Financial Highlights and Business Results

The Company has done export of Gems and Jewellery in the

present year. Your company's performance during the

financial year 2013-14 as compared with the previous year

is summarized as below:

(Amount in thousands)

Particulars 2013-2014 2012-2013

Total Income 729671.38 -

Profit/(Loss) before 17815.33 (285.12)

Depreciation, Interest &

Exceptional Items

Less:-Depreciation 20.44 27.58

Less:-Finance Cost 239.03 -

Profit /(Loss) before tax &

Exceptional Items 17555.87 (312.71)

Less:-Exceptional Items - -

Profit /(Loss) before tax 17555.87 (312.71)

Less : Provision for tax 1349.37 2.57

Profit/(Loss) after Tax 16206.50 (315.28)

The Company has effectively started its export business

operations from the month of January, 2014 onwards. The

Company has only exported Gems and Jewellery to the foreign

customers on wholesale basis. During the year the company

has achieved the turnover of Rs 72,96,71,379 (seventy two

crore ninety six lakh seventy one thousand three hundred

and seventy nine Rupees) as against the nil turnover in the

previous year. This is because of starting of export activities

of the Company in the international market. Your Company

is expanding its international business day by day. As a

result of this good business there has been an increase in

the profits of the company to Rs 1,75,55,867 (one crore

seventy five lakh fifty five thousand eight hundred and sixty

seven Rupees) in the present financial year.

Dividend

Due to inadequate profits and in order to conserve resources

for expanding the business, your Directors have opined to

not recommend any dividend for the year 2013-14.

Management Discussion and Analysis

As required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered

into with the Stock Exchanges, the Management Discussion

and Analysis of the financial condition and result of

consolidated operations of the Company for the year under

review, is annexed and forms an integral part of this

Directors' Report.

Corporate Governance Report

A Report on Corporate Governance as required under Clause

49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock

Exchanges, forms part of the Annual Report. A Certificate

from M/s. A. Kay Mehra & Co., Chartered Accountants, and

Statutory Auditors of the Company confirming compliance

with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated

under the aforesaid Clause 49, also forms part of the Annual

Report.

Share Capital

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the

Company, with the approval of the shareholders, allotted

46449333 Equity Shares to the following shareholders who

were financial investors in the Company on January 15, 2014

for an aggregate consideration of Rupees 650290662 at a

price of Rupees 14 per share (face value of Rs. 10/- each and

premium of Rs. 4 per share) in accordance with the Securities

and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2009 ("ICDR Regulations"):

Name of Allottee Number of equity

shares allotted

Al Mareija Precious Metal 12494680

And Bullions (FZE)

Al Juraina Precious Metals & 9655168

Bullions (FZE)

Mankool General Trading (FZE) 12110748

Al Layyah General Trading (FZE) 12188737
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Subsequent to the aforesaid allotment share capital of the

Company enhanced. Because of the aforesaid allotment

shareholding of Promoter (Atlas Jewellery Private Limited)

falls to 3.23%. Promoter is in full control on the management

and affairs of the Company.

Material Change

There was no material change affecting the financial

position of the Company between the date of balance Sheet

and the date of this Report.

Particular of Employees

There is no information required to be given as per section

217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies

(Particulars of Employees) rules, 1975 for the year under

review as none of the employee falls in this category.

Postal Ballot

During the financial year, the Company had passed the

following resolutions by way of postal ballot pursuant to

Section 192A of the Companies Act, 1956 relating to:

1. Change in the name of the Company from GEE EL

Woollens Limited to Atlas Jewellery India Limited;

2. Change in the main objectives of the Company;

3. Increase in the authorized share capital of the

Company and subsequent change in capital clause of

Memorandum of Association of the Company; and

4. Issuance and allotment of equity shares of the

Company on preferential basis to four foreign

investors.

For the first two items the Company completed dispatch of

postal ballots on June 27, 2013 and outcome of the postal

ballot was announced on July 31, 2013 and the resolution

was carried with requisite majority. The name and

objectives of the Company stands amended with effect from

the said date.

For the third and fourth item the Company completed

dispatch of postal ballots on 18th November, 2013 and

outcome of the postal ballot was announced on 23rd

December 2013 and the resolution was carried with requisite

majority.

Composition of the Board

Post change in the management of the Company by way of

open offer which was closed on May 13, 2013 four directors

have been appointed in the Company during financial year

namely Mr. M. M. Ramachandran (Non Executive Director

and Chairman), Mrs., Indira Ramachandran (Non Executive

Director), Mr. Gaurav Goswami (Independent Director) and

Mr. Lukoo Sugunan Madathiparambil. Mr. M. M.

Ramachandran and Mrs. Ramachandran and Mr. and Lukoo

have been appointed with effect from with effect from May

23, 2013, and Mr. Gaurav were appointed with effect from

May 27, 2014. The aforesaid directors were appointed as

additional directors but were regularized as directors in

the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on

28th September, 2014. However, Mr. Deepak Agrawal, Mr.

Himansoo Sood and Mr. Jatin Mittal have resigned with effect

from May 22, 2013. Mr. Deepak Agarwal resigned with effect

from May 28, 2013. The Board thanked all of them for their

valuable contribution to the Company. Mr. Arun Chandaran

K has been appointed on May 27, 2014 as the Company

Secretary and compliance officer of the Company. At present

there are four Directors in the Company namely Mr. M.M.

Ramachandra (non executive Director and Chairman), Mrs.

Indira Ramachandran (non executive Director), Mr. Gaurav

Goswami (non executive Independent Director) and Mr. Lukoo

Sugunan Madathiparambil (non executive Independent

Director). The brief profiles of the aforesaid Director's are

as follows:

Mr. M.M. Ramachandran

Mr. Ramachandran is a well known businessman and is a

well known face in the Gem and Jewellery Industry. He is a

post graduate in Economics from Delhi School of Economies.

He has worked with Canara Bank, the Commercial Bank of

Kuwait. He has established several jewellery stores in Dubai

and middle east. He has a vast experience of more than 35

years in the Gem and Jewellery sector. He has also been

Secretary of the Dubai Gold & Jewellery Group for its first

six years, key founding member of the Abu Dhabi Gold &

Jewellery Group. Apart from the business Mr. Ramachandran

is also a well known film director and producer of

Malayalam movies.   He has won various awards for his

business performances and movies. He is the present non

executive Director and Chairman of the Company and also a

member of the Audit Committee, Chairman of the

Shareholder's/Investor Grievance and Share Transfer

Committee. He is holding directorship in the following

Companies:

(i) Atlas Jewellery Private Limited

(ii) Indiavision Satellite Communications Limited

(iii) R I Kanth Property Developers Private Limited
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(iv) Atlas Golden Land And Developers Private Limited

(v) Atlasgold Townships (India) Private Limited

(vi) Atlas Animation Infotainment And Media School

Private Limited

(vii) Atlas Holiday Private Limited

Mr. Ramachandran is not holding any shares in the

Company.

Mrs. Indira Ramachandran

Mrs. Indira Ramachandran is a a science graduate in

physics. She has worked as a teacher in schools as a hobby.

She has been working in the Gem and Jewellery industry

since last 25 years and has a lot of experience in the field of

managing the business and handling jewellery sales. She is

the present non executive director of the Company and also

a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

She is holding directorship in the following Companies

except the Company:

(i) Atlas Jewellery Private Limited

(ii) R I Kanth Property Developers Private Limited

(iii) Atlas Holiday Private Limited

She is liable to retire by rotation and is liable to retire by

rotation in this Annual General Meeting eligible for re-

appointment offered herself for re-appointment. Mrs.

Ramachandran is not holding any shares in the Company.

She is not a member or chairman in any committee of any

other company.

Mr. Gaurav Goswami

Mr. Gaurav Goswami aged 36 years is a qualified Commerce

and Management graduate. He is an expert in the field of

financial management and accounts, debt syndication,

project finance, investements etc. He is professional advisor

to many companies. He has vast experience of 15 years in

capital advisory services, real estate advisory and

investment management. Mr. Gaurav Goswami is a non

executive independent Director of the Company and also

the Chairman of Audit Committee and Nomination and

Remuneration Committee and a member of Shareholder/

Investor Grievance and shall transfer Committee. He is

proposed to be appointed as a non executive Director of the

Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Other details of Mr. Goswami as required under clause 49

of the listing Agreement is given in the notice of AGM.

Mr. Lukoo Sugunan Madathiparambil

Mr. Lukoo is a commerce graduate and having more than 10

years of experience in, sales, marketing & distribution. He

is the present non executive independent Director of the

Company and also the member of Audit Committee,

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Shareholders/

Investors Grievance and Share Transfer Committee. He is

proposed to be appointed as a non executive Director of the

Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Other details of Mr. Likoo as required under clause 49 of the

listing Agreement is given in the notice of AGM.

Other Directors

Mr. Ashish Srivastava is proposed to be appointed as an

Independent Director of the Company. The Company has

received a notice in writing from a member alongwith the

deposit of requisite amount under Section 160 of the Act

proposing his candidatures as Independent Director of the

Company. He is an IIT graduate and having more than 10

years of experience as an entrepreneur in business

management, operations. Other details of Mr. Ashish as

required under clause 49 of the listing Agreement is given in

the notice of AGM.

Mr. Ajith Muruleedharan Kovooril has been appointed as

an additional director as well as Managing Director of the

Company in the Board meeting dated 9th June, 2014 subject

to approval of shareholders. He is an IT graduate having

more than 6 years of versatile experience in IT, sales and

marketing. His last work was with Atlas Jewellery Private

Limited (in the Gem & Jewellery Sector) as a Sales and

Marketing manager where he worked for two years. He has

also been managing administration of whole affairs of the

Atlas Jewellery Private Limited and all the sales and

marketing affairs. He is not holding any shares in the

Company. He is not a director in any other company and

neither is a member of any committee in the Company or

any other company. Terms and conditions of his appointment

is given in the notice of AGM. You director recommends his

appointment as a managing director of the Company. Other

details of Mr. Ajith as required under clause 49 of the listing

Agreement is given in the notice of AGM. Directors of your

Company recommend his appointment as a Managing

Director of the Company.
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Change in Control

In terms of the provisions of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition

of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, Atlas Jewellery

Private Limited, issued a Public Announcement for Open

Offer to acquire equity shares of the Company. The Open

Offer opened on May 13, 2014.

Directors Responsibility Statement

As required under section 217(1AA) of the Companies Act,

1956 it is hereby stated that:

1. In the preparation of the accounts, the applicable

accounting standards have been followed;

2. The Directors have selected such accounting policies

and applied them consistently except as otherwise

stated in the Notes on Accounts and made judgment

and estimate that are reasonable and prudent so as to

give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

Company as at end of the financial year and of the

Profit of the Company for the period under review;

3. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care

for the maintenance of adequate accounting records

in accordance with the provision of the Companies

Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company

and for preventing and detecting fraud and other

irregularities;

4. The Directors had prepared the accounts on a "going

concern" basis.

Listing of Securities

In accordance with approval granted by the shareholders,

the Company has made an application for delisting of its

shares with the stock exchanges namely The Stock Exchange,

Ahmadabad, and The Jaipur Stock Exchange Ltd and The Delhi

Stock Exchange Association Ltd. The matter is pending with

the respective stock exchanges. Company Equity Shares are

listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE), which has

nationwide trading terminals.

Apart from the aforesaid, the Company has got listed listed

46449333 Equity Shares on the Bombay Stock Exchange

which were issued on preferential basis to the investors

mentioned above.

Auditor

M/s. A. Kay Mehra & Co. Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg.

No. 050004C), retire as Auditors of the Company at the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting and have given their

consent for re-appointment. As required under the provisions

of section 224 of the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has

obtained a written certificate from M/s A. Kay Mehra & Co.

Chartered Accountants, to the effect that their appointment,

if made, would be in conformity with the limits specified in

the said section.

Auditors' Report & Notes on Accounts

The observations made by the Auditors are self-explanatory

and have also been further simplified in the Notes to

Accounts.

Public Deposits

The Company has not accepted any public deposits during

the financial year under section 58A of the Companies Act,

1956 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,

1975.

Audit Committee

The present Audit Committee comprised of three non-

executive Directors viz., Mr. M.M. Ramachandran, Mr. Lukoo

Sugunan Madathiparambil and Mr. Gaurav Goswami. The

Members of the Audit Committee have the required financial

background. Mr. Gaurav Goswami is the Chairman of the

Audit Committee.

Change in the name and main objectives of the

Company

During the year the name and main objectives of the Company

were changed with the approval of the shareholders of the

Company in accordance with the provisions of the Companies

Act, 1956. The name of the Company has been changed from

Gee El Woollens Limited to "Atlas Jewellery India Limited".

The new main objectives of the Company are as follows:

(i) To carry on in India or elsewhere the business of

goldsmiths, silver smiths, jewellers, gem and diamond

merchants and of producing, acquiring and trading,

importing, exporting, buying, selling in all kind of

metals, bullion, gold, silver, platinum, diamonds,

precious stones and pearls, watches, sunglasses etc.

(ii) To carry on in India or elsewhere the business to

manufacture, produce, process, prepare,

commercialize, cut, polish, set, design, display,
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exchange, examine, finish, grind, grade, assort, import,

export, buy, sell, resale, demonstrate, market and to

act as agent, broker, indentor, liasioner, adatias,

representative, C & F agents, export house, valuer,

sales promoter, supplier, provider, merchants,

stockists, distributor, wholesaler, retailer or otherwise

to deal in all shapes, sizes, varieties, description,

specifications, applications & designs of rough, raw

cut, uncut, polished or processed, natural & man made

precious semiprecious & natural stones such as

diamonds, ruby, pearls, gemstones, blue sapphires,

cat's eye stone, coral, topaz, opal, zircon, tourmaline,

jade, spinel ruby, aquamarine, turquoise, peidot,

agate, garnet, corundum, amethyst, malachite, citrine,

alexendrite, smoky quartz, lapis lazuli, rock crystal,

onyx, moon stone, jasper, blood stone, gold stone,

bismuth, jet, diopside, tiger eye, sunstone, spinal, jews

stone, load stoner, sardonex, touch stone, amber and

their ornaments, jewelleries, articles, goods, or things,

made in the combination of gold, silver, platinum, or

other metals, and alloys thereof and for the purpose

to act as goldsmith, silversmith, jewelers, gem

merchants,

Conservation of Energy and Technology

Absorption

Information under section 217(e) of the Companies Act, 1956

read with the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the

Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988, is given below:

a) Energy Conservation Measures taken: Not Applicable

as Company is in the business of export which are

more dependent on Human skill than power

consumption.

b) Additional investments and proposals, if any, being

implemented for reduction of consumption of energy :

Nil

c) Impact of the measures at (a) and (b) above for

reduction of energy consumption and consequent

impact on the cost of production of goods : Not

Applicable

Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

The details of the earnings and outgo in Foreign Exchange

during the year under review are provided in Notes to the

Financial Statements as at March 31, 2014. The Members

are requested to refer to the said Note for details in this

regard.

Acknowledgement
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Company's Customers, Bankers, Shareholders, Dealers and

Suppliers for their assistance and co-operation and who
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June 09, 2014
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Management and Discussion Analysis Report

We submit herewith the Management discussion and analysis report on the business of the Company as applicable to the

extent relevant.

Industry Outlook

India's Gems and jewellery industry is a bright star of the economy, and one of the important foundations of the country's

export-led growth. The domestic gems and jewellery industry had a market size of Rs 251,000 crore (US$ 41.61 billion) in

2013, with potential to touch Rs 500,000-530,000 crore (US$ 82.94-87.93 billion) by 2018, according to a joint report by

FICCI -AT Kearney titled 'All that glitters is Gold: India Jewellery Review 2013'. FY 2013-14 saw an increase of 12.65 per cent

in export of cut and polished diamonds with the segment reaching US$ 19,635 million. The industry also saw an increase of

11.98 per cent in imports of rough diamonds with figures of US$ 16,716 million, suggesting a growth in cutting, polishing

and other manufacturing activities in the country. Key exporting destinations for gems and jewellery in FY 2013-14 were UAE

- 35 per cent of exports valued at US$ 12,195.34 million; Hong Kong - 28 per cent of exports valued at US$ 9,790.45 million;

and the US - 14 per cent of exports valued at US$ 4,948.92 million.

Indian gems and jewellery sector is expected to grow at a compounded annual growth rate of around 16.26% during the

financial years 2011 - 2012 to 2016 - 2017 on account of increasing government efforts and incentives coupled with private

sector initiatives, according to a report of the working group on 'Boosting India's Manufacturing Exports', by Ministry of

Commerce & Industry. Shipment of gems and jewellery makes up about 14 percent of India's total exports, and the sector

employs about 3.4 million workers, with the Middle East taking most of the market.

In the light of the changing government policies in relation to the Gem and Jewellery sector, we see a much potential growth

and motivation for export market.

Opportunities and Threats

Opportunities

Entering New Markets

The sector is exploring new locations to diversify business and to minimize the risk. Russia, Middle East and China are few

of the emerging destinations that are witnessing an increase in jewellery demand. The Indian gems and jewellery players

can tap these countries to diversify and increase their business. India's vast, low cost and extremely skilled workforce

provides it with a competitive edge over other countries. By moving up the value chain and processing larger stones, India

can further increase its value share in total exports.

Value Addition

There exists a huge opportunity for Indian players to do value addition to the low cost gold and diamonds items and can

export such jewellery. India has an advantage of manufacturing affordable gold and diamond jewellery for the world

market.

Jewellery Retail

The Indian retail sector provides an excellent opportunity for the Indian players to manufacture and sell their jewellery

through the retail channels that are fast catching up in the Indian markets.

Outsourcing Hub

India can become an outsourcing hub for designing and manufacturing jewellery. There is an increased trend of outsourcing

designing and manufacturing of jewellery from India by global retail players.

Government incentives

When the industry was going through a challenging period, governmental regulations related to the reintroduction of

bonded warehouse facility for diamond exporters and revision in duty drawback rate facility for Gold jewellery exporters
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has helped strengthen the industry further. The government has put in significant efforts for accepting recommendations to

make India an International Trading hub for rough diamonds. Government recently allowed more banks to import gold

thereby increasing availability of raw gold for the manufacturers.

Threats

Unorganized Sector

The gems and jewellery sector in India is unorganized and fragmented. Around 90% of the players operate in the unorganized

sector mostly in family-run operations. The nature of the sector prevents it from achieving economies of scale.

Predominance of the US market

The Indian gems and jewellery sector is pre-dominantly dependent on the US markets, which is its top export destination.

The growth of gems and jewellery sector is heavily dependent on the growth of demand in the US market.

Exchange Rate/Currency Risk

The gems and jewellery sector is affected by the rupee/dollar exchange rate because it is exportoriented. Any volatility in the

exchange rates affects the margins of the players.

High Level of Inventories

As the gems and jewellery sector is highly dependent on imports for its raw materials, the players have to maintain a high

level of inventory. However, maintaining this inventory becomes difficult for the players during the slack season, as it

carries inventory price risk.

Competition from Other Luxury Goods

With the increase in disposable income and the change in standard of living, the demand for luxury goods such as perfumes,

consumer electronics, leather, automobile, gadgets etc are also increasing. The gems and jewellery sector is experiencing

competition from these luxury goods, which is eating into the market share of the sector.

Artificial Jewellery

The sector also faces a challenge in the form of integration of synthetic or man-made diamonds. With the advent of

technology, it is difficult to differentiate between natural and artificial jewellery. This may hit the sales of low cost jewelleries

in the long run.

Outlook

Since the Company has started business in Gem and Jewellery sector last year only after change in its main object clause,

actual business started in the last quarter and the Company has achieved a significant export.  The Company is working

towards improvising the performance even better by aiming for ambitious growth targets through various initiatives,

constant exploration of new consumer segments. The Company is also planning to open showrooms to start direct selling

of jewellery to end consumers.

Risks and Concerns

Risk is the most inevitable characteristic of any business. One of the potential risk factor is the fluctuations in the prices of

gold, silver and other precious and semi precious metals. The demand for gold may be stagnant if gold prices rule high and

continue to be volatile. The competition is getting more local and regional with large players and organized players getting

into the business. The Company is also subject to international market and regulatory risks. The international prices are

largely governed by movements at major bullion exchanges of London, New York, Tokyo and others. The fast changing

consumer taste and fashion is also a constant risk in the business. Evolution of rapidly increasing varied types of branded

fashion and ethnic jewellery pose a tough competition for the Company which in turn may affect the turnover and profitability
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of the Company. The Board is at it verge trying to mitigate and minimize these risks by constantly studying the market

demand and changing the variety of products it delivers to its customers.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

Company has adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the nature and size of its business. It ensures that

all the assets are safeguarded and used productively. The Audit Committee and the internal control procedures and corrective

action taken by the company where needed.

The Company's system primarily covers the aspects such as:

1. Control over operating parameters and various factors relating to production.

2. Efficient use and protection and resources.

3. Accuracy and promptness of financial reporting.

4. Compliance with laws and regulations.

Financial Condition:

Share Capital

During the year under review Company has allotted 46449333 Equity Shares to the four financial investors the details of

which is given in the Directors Report.

Secured Loans

The Company has not borrowed any Secured loans as at 31st March, 2014.

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets (Net Block) is Rs. 58506 during the financial year. Plans are being drawn to acquire existing manufacturing

facility during the current year.

Human Resources:

The Company strongly believes that a right workforce makes all the difference in catapulting an organization to the highest

echelons of success and achievement. Our workforce, thus, is a blend of cohesive and effective knowledge workers, one that

is flexible. Working together, we intend to develop and hone a workforce strategy that will be integral to the business

strategy of our customers.

Cautionary Statement:

Statement made in Management Discussion and Analysis report which seeks to describe the Objectives, projections, estimates,

predictions may be considered to be forward looking statements and are stated as required by applicable laws and

regulations. Actual results could differ from those expressed or implied and are determined by many factors including

global and domestic demand - supply conditions, process, raw materials availability, tax laws, governmental policies and

other statutes which may affect actual results which may be different from what the Directors envisaged in terms of future

performance and outlook.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

M. M. Ramachandran

(Chairman)

June 09, 2014
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Corporate Governance Report

Atlas Jewellery India Limited (formerly Gee El Woollens Limited) corporate governance policies recognize the importance of

the transparency to all its constituents, including employees, customers, investors and the regulatory authorities and of

demonstrating that the shareholders are the ultimate beneficiaries of the Company's economic activities.

Atlas Jewellery's corporate governance philosophy encompasses not only regulatory and legal requirements, including the

SEBI Regulations in respect of corporate governance, but also other practices aimed at a business ethics, effective supervision

and enhancement of value for all shareholders. Atlas Jewellery's role, function, responsibility and accountability are

clearly defined. In addition to its primary role of monitoring corporate performance, the function of the Board includes

approving a business plan, reviewing and approving annual budgets and borrowing limits, fixing exposure limits and

ensuring that our shareholders are kept informed about our plans, strategies and performance. To enable the Board of

Directors to discharge these responsibilities effectively, the management provides detailed reports on performance to the

board on a quarterly basis.

The Board of Directors also functions through various committees such as the Audit Committee, and the Shareholders' /

Investors Grievances Committee. These committees meet on a regular basis Your Company understands that the customer is

the purpose of our business and every customer is an important stakeholder of your Company, performing ethically and

efficiently to generate long term value and wealth for all its stakeholders. The Report on Corporate Governance, as per the

applicable provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement is as under:

Company's Philosophy:

Corporate Governance refers to a set of policies, principles, laws, rules, regulations and procedures that enable the

Company to attract best financial and human resources and to perform efficiently to create and maximize the wealth of the

stakeholders. Your Company is committed to uphold these concepts and practices.

The company further believes that the good and effective Corporate Governance lies in managing the business in a transparent

manner, sharing the information with the shareholders and keeping overheads restricted.

The Company is fully compliant with all the requirements of the listing agreement

The Company is fully compliant with all the requirements of the listing agreement of the stock exchanges. The details of the

Compliances are as follows:

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors includes the Non-Executive and Independent Directors with a half of Independent Directors so as to

ensure proper governance and management.

The Corporate Governance principles of the Company ensures that the board remains informed, independent and involved

in the Company and that there are ongoing efforts towards better corporate governance. The board has empowered responsible

persons to implement its broad policies and guidelines and has set up adequate review processes.

The basic responsibility of the board is to provide effective governance over the Company's affairs exercising its reasonable

business judgments on behalf of the Company.

The Board of the company was duly constituted and consisted of 4 directors as on March 31, 2014 namely Mr. M.M.

Ramachandra (non executive Director and Chairman), Mrs. Indira Ramachandran (non executive Director), Mr. Gaurav

Goswami (non executive Independent Director) and Mr. Lukoo Sugunan Madathiparambil (non executive Independent

Director).. There are no nominees or Institutional Directors in the Company. To be in line with the company's philosophy on

Corporate Governance, all statutory subjects are placed before the Board to discharge its responsibilities as trustees of the

Shareholders.
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None of Directors has pecuniary or business relationship with the Company except as mentioned elsewhere in the Annual

Report. No Director of the Company is either member in more than ten committees and/or Chairman of more than five

committees across all Companies in which he is Director.

None of the Directors hold directorship in more than fifteen public limited companies, as on March 31, 2014 nor is any of

them a member of more than ten committees or Chairman of more than five committees across all public limited companies

in which they are Directors.

Responsibilities

Directors

The Board of directors are jointly responsible for the overall management of the Company. Board issues instructions to the

employees and senior executive of the Company for any work. All the directors have access to the all the information's of the

Company. Newly elected director is also informed about the Company by the Board of Directors.

Independent Director

The Independent Directors play a vital role in vetting issues and decisions at the Audit Committee/ Board Meeting and bring

to the company their wide experience in the field of Corporate Management, Accounts, finance, taxation, audit, legal and

information management. All the two Independent Directors are non-executive and have free and independent access to all

the information of the Company.

Code of Conduct

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management and Employees of the Company

(the Code). The Code has been communicated to the Directors and the members of Senior Management. All Board members

and senior management have confirmed compliance with the Code for the year ended 31st March, 2014. The Annual Report

contains a declaration to this effect signed by the Chairman.

Board Meetings

The Company holds at least four Board meetings in a year, one in each quarter inter-alia to review the financial results of the

Company. The gap between the two Board Meetings does not exceed four calendar months. Apart from the four scheduled

Board Meetings, additional Board Meetings are also convened to address the specific requirements of the Company. Urgent

matters are also approved by the Board by passing resolutions through circulation. The important decisions taken at the

Board/ Committee meetings are promptly communicated to the concerned departments. Action taken report (ATR) on the

decisions/ minutes of the previous meeting is placed at the succeeding meeting of the Board/ Committee for noting.

The following information is given to the Board either as a part of the agenda of the meeting or by way of presentation during

the meeting:

• Annual operating plans, budgets and Performances

• Quarterly, half-yearly and annual results of your Company

• Minutes of the meeting of Audit Committee and other committees of the Board of Directors.

• Information on appointment of the key managerial personnel below the Board level.

• Significant regulatory matters

• Detailed risk analyses

• Details of potential acquisition and disinvestments and

• Any other significant matters.

The Board performs following functions in addition to overseeing the overall business and management:

• Review, monitor and approve major financial and business strategies and corporate actions;

• Assess critical risks faced by the Company - Review options
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• Ensures that the process are in place for maintaining the integrity of the Company.

• The financial statements.

• Compliance with law.

• Relationship with customers and shareholders.

• Delegation of appropriate authority to the Senior Executives of the Company for effective management of operations.

During the year there were in total 17 (Seventeen) Board Meetings were held i.e. on 09.04.2013, 23.05.2013, 27.5.2013,

01.06.2013, 20.06.2013, 31.07.2013, 09.08.2013, 31.08.2013, 3.10.2013. 29.10.2013, 04.11.2013, 16.11.2013, 23.12.2013,

15.01.2014, 23.01.2014, 10.02.2014 and 13.03.2014. The time gap between the two meetings was not more than 4 months.

All the information required to be furnished to the Board was made available to them along with detailed Agenda notes.

Name of Director Category No. of meetings Attendance at

Attended last AGM

Mr. M. M. Ramachandran Non Executive Director and Chairman 10 Yes

Mrs. Ramachandran Non Executive Director 5 Yes

Mr. Gaurav Goswami Independent Director 15 Yes

Mr. Lukoo Sugunan Independent Director 15 Yes

Madathiparambil

In terms of General Circular No. 28/2011 dated 20.05.2011 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India,

every Director of the Company has personally attended at least one Board/Committee of Directors' Meeting in the financial

year 2013-14.

Certificates have also been obtained from the Independent Directors confirming their position as Independent Directors on

the Board of the Company in accordance with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Clause 49 of the Listing

Agreement.

Number of Board of Directors or Board Committees other than Atlas Jewellery India Limited in which the Director is a

Chairman/Member (excluding private companies, foreign companies and companies registered under Section 25 of the

Companies Act, 1956/Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013) is as follows:

Name of Director No. of Directorship No. of Audit Committees and Shareholder's /

Investors Grievance Committees* in which

Chairman / Member

Chairman Member

Mr. M. M. Ramachandran 7 NIL NIL

Mrs. Ramachandran 3 NIL NIL

Mr. Gaurav Goswami 1 NIL NIL

Mr. Lukoo Sugunan Madathiparambil NIL NIL NIL

*As per Sub-clause (l)(C) of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Committees of Board

Under the aegis of the Board of Directors, several committees have been constituted which have been delegated powers for

different functional areas. There are three Committees namely, the Audit Committee, Shareholders'/Investors' Grievance and

Share Transfer Committee and Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
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Audit Committee

Pursuant to the provisions of section 292(A) of the Companies Act, 1956 and clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, During the

year an Audit Committee was duly constituted that consisted of Mr. Gaurav Goswami (Independent Director) as a Chairman

and Mr. Lukoo (Independent Director) and Mr. M.M. Ramachandran as a member (Non Executive Director and Chairman of

the Company).

All the members of the Audit Committee have expertise in financial and general management. The Committee reviews the

reports of the Internal financials, periodically meets the Statutory Auditors of the Company and discusses their findings,

observations, suggestions, scope of audit etc. and also reviews internal control systems and accounting policies followed

by the Company. The Committee also reviews the financial statements with the management, before their submission to the

Board.

During the year there were in total 5 (Five) Audit committee Meetings were held i.e. on 20.05.2013, 01.08.2013, 21.10.2013,

04.11.2013 and 01.02.2014. The said meetings were attended by all the committee members except Mr. Ramachandran who

was not present in Audit Committee meeting dated 20.05.2014 (in this meeting he was not a Director) and 01.08.2013.

Besides this, another meeting of the Audit Committee was held on 20th May, 2014 at which meeting, the Audited Annual

Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2014, were placed before the Committee for consideration.

Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committee

The terms of reference of the Shareholders'/Investors' Grievances and Share Transfer Committee inter alia includes carrying

out such functions f or redressal of the shareholders' and investors' complaints, including but not limited to, transfer of

shares, non receiptof annual report, non-receipt of dividend and any other grievance that a shareholder or investor of the

Company may have against the Company. The Committee also oversees and approves Transfer/Transmission/

Dematerialisation of shares, issue of Duplicate/Consolidated/Split Share Certificate(s) etc.

The Company has appointed M/s. Beetal Financial & Computer Services Private Limited as its Registrar and Share Transfer

Agent (RTA). The Shareholders'/Investors' Grievances and Share Transfer Committee recommends measures for overall

improvement in the quality of investor services. There were 27 meetings of this committee held during the year.

The terms of reference of the Shareholders'/Investors' Grievances and Share Transfer Committee has been revised and the

existing Committee is renamed as "Stakeholders Relationship Committee" in the Board Meeting held on June 09, 2014 in

order to align with Companies Act, 2013 and revised Clause 49 of Listing Agreement as amended from time to time.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

In the light of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been formed by the

Board of Directors in its Board Meeting dated 28th May, 2014. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of

three directors namely Mr. Gaurav Goswami (Independent Director), Mr. Lukoo S (Independent Director) and Mr. M. M

Ramachandran. Mr. Gaurav Goswami is the Chairman of the Meeting. Nomination and Remuneration Committee has only

one meeting on 9th June, 2014 where Mr. Gaurav and Mr. Lukoo were present.

Disclosure on Remuneration of the Directors

Directors were not paid any remuneration during the financial year 2013-14.

Details of fixed component and performance linked incentives, along with the performance criteria - NIL

Service contracts, notice period, severance fees - NIL
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Stock option details, if any - and whether issued at a discount as well as the period over which accrued and over which

exercisable - NIL

No such remuneration or sitting fee paid to any Director for the year ended 31st March, 2013.

General Body Meetings

Details of last three Annual General Meetings are given below:

Financial Year Date and Time Venue

2010-11 30.09.2011 H-35, Sainik Farms, New Delhi-110062

2011-12 28.09.2012 H-35, Sainik Farms, New Delhi-110062

2012-13 28.09.2013 Silvo Hall, Fraser Suits, Plot No 4A, District Center, Mayur Vihar,

Phase I, New Delhi - 110091

Apart from the aforesaid, an Extra Ordinary General meeting was held on 18th February, 2014 at the registered office of the

Company at 10:00 AM to approve certain disclosures which was missing from the postal ballot notice dated 18th November,

2013 in relation to a resolution passed for issuance of shares to four financial investors on preferential basis.

Apart from the aforesaid during the financial year, the Company had passed the following resolutions by way of postal

ballot pursuant to Section 192A of the Companies Act, 1956 relating to:

1. Change in the name of the Company from GEE EL Woollens Limited to Atlas Jewellery India Limited;

2. Change in the main objectives of the Company;

3. Increase in the authorized share capital of the Company and subsequent change in capital clause of Memorandum of

Association of the Company; and

4. Issuance and allotment of equity shares of the Company on preferential basis to four foreign investors.

For the first two items the Company completed dispatch of postal ballots on June 27, 2013 and outcome of the postal ballot

was announced on July 31, 2013 and the resolution was carried with requisite majority. The name and objectives of the

Company stands amended with effect from the said date.

For the third and fourth item the Company completed dispatch of postal ballots on 18th November, 2013 and outcome of the

postal ballot was announced on 23rd December 2013 and the resolution was carried with requisite majority.

The Company has complied with the procedures for the postal ballot in terms of Section 192A of the Companies Act, 1956 as

well as Companies (Passing of Resolution by Postal Ballot) Rules, 2001. None of the businesses proposed to be transacted

at the ensuing Annual General Meeting requires passing of special resolution through Postal Ballot.

Disclosures

During the year under review, besides the transactions reported elsewhere in annual report, there were no other related

party transactions of material nature with the promoters, Directors, the management or their subsidiaries or relatives

during the year that may have potential conflict with the interest of the company at large.

There were no instances of Non-compliance on any matter related to the capital market during the past three years and that

no penalties or restrictions were imposed on the Company by any Stock Exchange or SEBI.

The details in respect of the Director proposed to be re-appointed are provided in the Directors' Report.
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The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Annual Report and includes discussions on  various

matters specified under Clause 49(IV)(F) of the Listing Agreement.

Means of Communication

Quarterly/annual audited financial results are regularly submitted to all the Stock Exchanges where the shares of the

Company are listed in accordance with the Listing Agreement and published in a prominent English daily newspaper and in

a regional language newspaper. The quarterly/annual results are also displayed on the Company's website

www.atlasjewelleryindia.com soon after their declaration.

During the financial year 2013-14, the Company has duly complied with all mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the

Listing Agreement.

General Shareholders Information

AGM

(i) Date and Time: 8th July, 2014 at 10: 00 A.M.

Venue: Sigol Hall, Fraser Suits, Plot no. 4A, District Centre, Mayur Vihar, Phase I, New Delhi-110091

(ii) Tentative Financial

The financial year of the Company is from April 1 to March 31 of the following year.

First Quarter Results: Second week of August, 2014

Second Quarter Results: Second week of November, 2014

Third Quarter Results: Second week of February, 2015

Fourth Quarter Results: Mid/Last week of May, 2015

(iii) Book Closure: July 01, 2014 to July 08, 2014

(iv) The Board of Directors have not proposed any dividend for the current Financial Year.

(v) The Company's shares are listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange, The Stock Exchange, Ahmadabad, The Jaipur Stock

Exchange Ltd. and The Delhi Stock, Exchange Association Ltd. The Listing Fees for the year 2013-14 for Bombay Stock

Exchange, Mumbai have been paid.

(vi) Stock Code: BSE:  514394

(vii) Company has obtained demat connectivity with both the depositories i.e. NSDL and CDSL and has been allotted

ISIN INE022N01019.
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(viii) Distribution of Shareholdings as on 31st March, 2014

Shareholding of Nominal Number of % of No of % of total

Value of Rs. Shareholders shareholders Shares held

Up to 5000 4491 88.61 822847 1.6244

5001   to  10000 375 7.40 308394 0.6088

10001 to  20000 99 1.95 160302 0.3165

20001 to  30000 36 0.71 89794 0.1773

30001  to  40000 12 0.24 43350 0.0856

40001 to  50000 11 0.22 52321 0.1033

50001  to  100000 18 0.36 149165 0.2945

100000 and above 26 0.51 49028360 96.7897

Total 5068 100 50654533 100

(ix) Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2013

Category No. of Shares Held Voting Strength

Promoters, Relatives & Associates 1636044 3.23

Private Corporate Bodies 406520024 91.838

Indian Public 2461115 4.859

FIIs/MFs/Banks 0 0

NRI/OCBs 37000 0.073

Others* 350 0.001

Total 5065453 100

•Includes clearing members (Demat Transit)

(x) Market Price Data during the financial year ended March 31, 2014.

Month High Low

April 18.50 9.95

May 9.50 8.84

June 12.05 9.19

July 16.70 12.26

August 17.10 15.60

September 18.90 16.00

October 17.50 9.55

November 11.29 9.36

December 13.13 11.50

January 12.60 11.50

February 22.51 11.79

March 30.45 23.60
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(xi) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Beetal House, 3rd Floor

99 Madangir, Behind Local Shopping Centre,

Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir,

New Delhi- 110062

Phone- 91-11-2996 1281-83

Fax- 91-11-2996 1284

Email- beetal@beetalfinancial.com

(xii) Contact information:

Mr. Chandan Mahapatra

Company Secretary and CFO

Atlas Jewellery India Limited

(Formerly GEE EL Woollens Limited)

A-12, RHS, Lower Ground Floor

Lajpat Nagar III, New Delhi-110024

Email: glwldel@gmail.com

Contact: 011-41041149

(xiii) Share Transfer System

After considering by the Shareholders'/Investors' Grievance Committee, the Share transfer in Physical form are registered

and returned within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt in case the documents are completed in all respects

(xiv) Mandatory/Non-Mandatory Requirements

During the financial year 2013-14, the Company has duly complied with all mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of

the Listing Agreement.

Compliance on the Code of Conduct:

I hereby confirm, that

The company has obtained from all the Members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel, affirmation that they have

complied with the code of conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel in respect of financial year 2013-2014.

For Atlas Jewellery India Limited

(Formerly GEE EL Woollens Limited)

M. M Ramachandran

(Chairman)

Date: June 09, 2014
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CEO/CFO Certification

To

The Board of Directors

Atlas Jewellery India Limited

(Formerly Gee El Woollens Limited)

Dear Sirs,

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2014 and to the

best of our knowledge and belief that:

(b) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that

might be misleading;

(c) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that

might be misleading;

(d) These statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance with existing

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations;

(e) No transactions entered into by the Company during the above said period which are fraudulent, illegal or violation

of the company's code of conduct.

(f) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have

evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and we have

disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls,

if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(g) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee

i. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to

the financial statements; and

iii. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the

management or an employee having a significant role in the company's internal control system over financial

reporting.

For Atlas Jewellery India Limited

(Formerly GEE EL Woolens Limited)

Sd/- Sd/-

David R. Stainely Chandan Mahapatra

(CEO) (CFO)

Place: New Delhi

Date: 9th June, 2014
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

To the Members of Atlas Jewellery India Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Atlas Jewellery India Limited (the "Company")

for the year ended on March 31, 2014, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of said Company with stock

exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was

limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions

of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company

has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For A. Kay Mehra & Co. (Chartered Accountants)

Firm Regn No. 050004C

Sd/-

         DEEPAK SUNEJA

Partner (M No. 501957)

Date: June 09, 2014, New Delhi
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of

ATLAS JEWELLERY INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Atlas Jewellery India Limited ("the Company"), which comprise

the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2014, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then

ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view

of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards

referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 ("the Act") read with the  General Circular 15/2013

dated 13th September, 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility includes the design, implementation

and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true

and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in

accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards

require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor

considers the internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting

policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Management, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial statements give

the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting

principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st  March, 2014;

(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; and

(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003("the Order") issued by the Central Government of India

in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in

paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears

from our examination of those books,

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement comply with the

Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Act;

(e)  In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement comply with the

Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 read with the General Circular 15/2013 dated 13

September 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect of section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2014 taken on record

by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2014 from being appointed as

a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Act.

For A. KAY. MEHRA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

(Registration No. 050004C)

Sd/-

DEEPAK SUNEJA

Partner

M.No: 501957

Place: DELHI

Dated: 28.05.2014
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

THE ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF ATLAS JEWELLERY INDIA LIMITED ('THE

COMPANY') FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014.

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanation given to us

during the course of our audit, we report that:

i) In respect of its fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records to show full particulars including quantitative details and situation

of its fixed assets on the basis of available information;

(b) As explained to us, all the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the management during

the year in phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the

company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification;

(c) In our opinion, the Company has not disposed of substantial part of fixed assets during the year and the going

concern status of the Company is not affected.

ii) In respect of its inventories:

(a) The Inventories of the Company have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during

the year;

(b) In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable

and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and nature of its business;

(c) The Company has maintained proper records of inventory. The discrepancies between physical stocks and the

book stocks, which have been properly dealt with, were not material.

iii) In respect of Loans

(a) The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the

register u/s 301 of the Companies Act, 1956;

(b) The Company has taken unsecured Loan from company covered in the register u/s 301 of the Companies Act,

1956. Details are given in Note No. 23 to the Financial Statements.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control

systems commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchase of

inventory, fixed assets and also for the sale of goods and services. During the course of our audit we have not observed

any major weaknesses in internal control system.

v) In respect of transactions covered under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956:

(a) In our opinion, the particulars of contracts or arrangements, referred to in Section 301 of the Companies Act,

1956 have been entered in the register required to be maintained under that section; and.

(b) In our opinion, the transactions made in pursuance of such contracts or arrangements have been made at prices

which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

vi) As per information given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits within the meaning of Section 58A, 58AA or any

other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

vii) The Company does not has an Internal Audit System.

viii) We are of the opinion that, prima facie, the cost records & accounts prescribed by the Central Government u/s 209

(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956 have been maintained. We have not, however, carried out any detailed examination

of such accounts and records.

ix) In respect of statutory dues:
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(a) According to the records of the Company, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues

including provident fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employee's State Insurance, Income-tax, Vat,

Wealth Tax, Service tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other Statutory dues with the appropriate authorities;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the

aforesaid dues were outstanding, as at 31st March, 2014 for a period of more than six months from the date of

becoming payable;

x) The Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 1, 09, 95,160.01 as on 31st March 2014 . Company has not incurred any

cash losses during the financial year ended on 31st March 2014 but incurred cash losses of Rs. 2, 85,127.97 in the

immediately preceding financial year.

xi) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation given to us, we are of the opinion

that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions or banks.

xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no loans and   advances have been

granted by the company on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

xiii) In our opinion, the company is not a chit fund or a nidhi /mutual benefit fund/ society. Therefore, the clause 4(xiii) of

the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2003 is not applicable to the Company.

xiv) As the company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments, the provision of

paragraph IV (xiv) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 does not apply.

xv) In our opinion, the Company has not given any guarantees for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions.

xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have been applied for the

purpose for which they were raised.

xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the Balance Sheet of the

company, we are of the opinion that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term investments.

xviii) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in

the register maintained u/s 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not issued any debentures during the

period covered by our audit report.

xx) The Company has not raised any money by way of public issue during the year.

xxi) In our opinion, no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit

report.

For A. KAY. MEHRA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

(Registration No. 050004C)

Sd/-

DEEPAK SUNEJA

Partner

M.No: 501957

Place: DELHI

Dated: 28.05.2014
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2014

(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS Note No. AS AT AS AT

31ST MARCH, 2014 31ST MARCH,2013

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS‘ FUNDS

Share Capital 1 507115330.00 42622000.00 -

Reserves & Surplus 2 177440079.99 684555409.99 (24563748.61) 18058251.40

SHARE APPLICATION MONEY

PENDING ALLOTMENT 43189171.00 - -

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other Long - Term Liabilities 3 233000.00 - 233000.00

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short Term Borrowings 4 4123935.00                              - -

Other Current Liabilities 5 18671472.88 76236.00 -

Short Term Provisions 6 1346258.18 24141666.06                              - 76236.00

TOTAL 752119247.06 18367487.40

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed Assets - Tangible Assets 7 58506.13 78945.00 -

Non-Current Investments 8 3000.00 3000.00 -

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 35344.62 38456.60 -

Long Term Loans & Advances 9 15184000.00 15280850.75 17550000.00 17670401.60

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade Receivables 10 722678393.58                              - -

Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 12094297.56 169847.63 -

Short Term Loans and Advances 12 2065705.17 736838396.31 527238.17 697085.80

TOTAL 752119247.06 18367487.40

Significant Accounting Policies and

Notes on Financial Statements 1-29     

    
As per our report of even date.

For A Kay Mehra & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No. 050004C

DEEPAK SUNEJA

Partner

M No. 501957

Place: New Delhi

Date : 28.05.2014

For  and  on  behalf  of  the  Board of Directors of

ATLAS JEWELLERY INDIA LIMITED

(FORMERLY GEE EL WOOLLENS LIMITED)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

M.M.RAMACHANDRAN INDIRA RAMACHANDRAN ARUN CHANDRAN K.

CHAIRMAN & DIRECTOR  DIRECTOR COMPANY SECRETARY
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PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014

(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS Note AS AT 31ST MARCH,2014 AS AT 31ST MARCH,2013

INCOME

Revenue from Operations 13 729671379.40 -

TOTAL REVENUE 729671379.40 -

EXPENSES

Purchase of Gold & Bullions 671790625.00 -

Employee Benefits Expense 14 163000.00 180000.00

Finance Costs 15 239027.07 -

Depreciation & Amortisation Expense 16 20438.86 27579.00

Other Expenses 17 39902421.70 105127.97

TOTAL EXPENSES 712115512.63 312706.97

Profit before Tax 17555866.77 (312706.97)

Tax expenses

   Current tax 1346258.18                                          -

   Deferred Tax 3111.98 2569.34

Profit After Tax 16206496.60 (315276.31)

Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 0.32 (0.07)

(Basic & Diluted)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements 1-29

As per our report of even date.

For A Kay Mehra & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No. 050004C

DEEPAK SUNEJA

Partner

M No. 501957

Place: New Delhi

Date : 28.05.2014

For  and  on  behalf  of  the  Board of Directors of

ATLAS JEWELLERY INDIA LIMITED

(FORMERLY GEE EL WOOLLENS LIMITED)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

M.M.RAMACHANDRAN INDIRA RAMACHANDRAN ARUN CHANDRAN K.

CHAIRMAN & DIRECTOR  DIRECTOR COMPANY SECRETARY



28

Annual report 2013-14: Atlas Jewellery India Limited

(formerly known as Gee El Woollens Limited)

Notes on Financial Statements For the year ended 31st March,2014

(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT

31ST MARCH,2014 31ST MARCH,2013

1 SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED  SHARE CAPITAL

199,980,000 Equity Shares of par value Rs. 10/- each 1999800000.00 49800000.00

(Previous year 49,80,000 Equity shares of par value of Rs. 10/-   each)

20,000 Preference Shares of par value Rs. 10/- each 200000.00 200000.00

(Previous year 20,000 Equity shares of par value of Rs. 10/- each)

2000000000.00 50000000.00

ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL

50,797,133 Equity Shares of par value Rs. 10/- each 507971330.00 43478000.00

(Previous year 43,47.800 Equity Shares of Rs. Par value of 10/- each)

507971330.00 43478000.00

SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

50,654,533 Equity Shares of par value of Rs. 10/- each 506545330.00 42052000.00

(Previous year 42,05,200 Equity Shares of par value Rs. 10/- each)

Less : Allotment Money in arrears - -

506545330.00 42052000.00

Add : Forfeited Shares Account 570000.00 570,000.00

507115330.00 42622000.00

1.1 DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDER HOLDING MORE THAN 5% SHARES

Number Of shares % Held Number of shares % held

held In the Company held in the Company

AL MAREJIA PRECIOUS METALS AND BULLIONS (FZE) 12494680 24.67                        -                  -

AL LAYYAH  GENERAL TRADING (FZE) 12188737 24.06                        -                  -

MANKOOL GENERAL TRADING (FZE) 12110748 23.91                        -                  -

AL JURAINA PRECIOUS METAL AND BULLIONS (FZE) 9655168 19.06                        -                  -

ATLAS JEWELLERY PVT LTD                     -                  -                996,754              23.70

PUSHPA RANI AGRAWAL                     -                  -                240,000               5.71

SUDARSAN                     -                  - 213491 5.08

VINOD AGARWAL                     -                  - 352500 8.38

1.2 Reconciliation of No. of shares outstanding :

Particulars Equity Shares Number

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year        4205200

Shares Issued during the year          46449333

Shares Forfeited during the year                                             -

Shares outstanding                           50,654,533



29

Annual report 2013-14: Atlas Jewellery India Limited

(formerly known as Gee El Woollens Limited)

PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT

31ST MARCH,2014 31ST MARCH,2013

2 RESERVES & SURPLUS

CAPITAL RESERVE:

State Capital Subsidy Reserve A/c

As per last Balance Sheet 2637908.00 2637908.00

Security Premium Account 185797332.00 185797332.00                           -

                                 -

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

As per last Balance Sheet (27201656.61) (26886380.30)

Add: Profit for the year 16206496.60 (10995160.01) (315276.31) (27201656.61)

Total 177440079.99 (24563748.61)

(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT

31ST MARCH, 2014   31ST MARCH, 2013

3 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

DEALER DEVELOPMENT SECURITY DEPOSITS 233000.00 233000.00

(NON REFUNDABLE)

TOTAL 233000.00 233000

4 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

UNSECURED

LOANS & ADVANCES FROM RELATED PARTIES                                                  4,123,935.00 -

TOTAL                                                  4,123,935.00 -

5 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Audit Fee Payable 51180.00 16236.00

Salary Payable 86000.00 60000.00

TDS Payable 193189.00 -

Export Commission Payable 7360922.13 -

Making Charges Payable 10941746.00 -

Other Expense Payables 38435.75 -

TOTAL 18671472.88 76236.00

6 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Income tax                                                  1,346,258.18

TOTAL                                                  1,346,258.18
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7        FIXED ASSETS (Amount in Rs.)

 G  R  O  S  S       B  L  O  C  K DEPRECIATION/ AMORTIZATION N  E  T    B L O C K

PARTICULARS As At Additions/ Deductions TOTAL UPTO Provided Deduction/ TOTAL As At As At

01.04.13 Adjustments during during Adjustments 31.03.14 31.03.13

during the the year As At As At the Year during the Upto

year 31.03.14 31.03.13   year 31.03.14

TANGIBLE ASSETS

OWN ASSETS

VEHICLES 353134.00 - - 353134.00 274189.00 20438.86 - 294627.86 58506.13 78945.00

TOTAL 353134.00 - - 353134.00 274189.00 20438.86 - 294627.86 58506.13 78945.00

PREVIOUS YEAR 353134.00 - - 353134.00 246610.00 27579.00 - 274189.00 78945.00 106524.00

PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT

31ST MARCH,2014 31ST MARCH,2013

8 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Non - Trade Investment in Government Securities

National Saving Certificates                                     3,000.00 3,000.00

TOTAL                                     3,000.00 3,000.00

9 LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES

  (Unsecured, Unconfirmed  and considered good)

Other Loans & Advances                             15,184,000.00 17,550,000.00

TOTAL                             15,184,000.00 17,550,000.00

9.1 Other Loan & Advances includes advance/loan to the outsiders which are recoverable in cash/kind after 12 months.

10 TRADE RECEIVABLES

 ( Unsecured and considered good)

a) Trade receivables due for a period exceeding six months                                               - -

b) Others                            722,678,393.58 -

TOTAL                            722,678,393.58 -

11 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT

a) Cash in Hand 1114.24 28309.24

b) Balance with Scheduled Banks In Current Accounts 12093183.32 141538.39

TOTAL             12094297.56 169847.63
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(Amount in Rs.)

                   PARTICULARS AS AT AS AT

31ST MARCH,2014 31ST MARCH,2013

12 SHORT-TERM LOANS & ADVANCES

( Unsecured, Unconfirmed  and considered good)

a)  Advance Income Tax & Tax Deducted at Source 2041338.17 527238.17

b)  Other Receivables 24367.00 -

TOTAL                2065705.17 527238.17

13 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Gold & Jewellery 729,671,379.40 -

TOTAL 729,671,379.40 -

14 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Wages, Salary, Bonus Gratuity & Other Allowances         163,000.00 180,000.00

TOTAL         163,000.00 180,000.00

15 FINANCE COSTS

Bank Charges         239,027.07 -

TOTAL         239,027.07 -

16 DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION EXPENSE

For the year            20,438.86 27579.00

TOTAL             20438.86 27579.00

17 OTHER EXPENSES

Ornaments Making Charges 11052276.00 -

Insurance Charges 331763.00 2783.97

Postage & Telephone 236427.75 -

Printing & Stationery 133349.00 -

Advertising Expenses 142575.00 -

Export Commission on Gold & Jewellery 7360922.13 -

Professional & Legal Fees 286130.00 -

Rent 24000.00 -

Currency Exchange Loss 6992985.85

Rates & Taxes 6000.00 -

Travelling Expenses 81822.00 -

Vehicle Running & Maintenance 0.00 4350.00

ROC & Listing Fee 12494664.00 0.00

Transfer & Connectivity Charges 105406.00 -

Fees & Subscription (CDSL & Others) 61797.60 -

Export Freight & Other Charges 358885.00 -

Payment to Auditors :

Audit Fee 56180.00 16545.00

Miscellaneous Expenses 177238.37 81449.00

TOTAL 39902421.70 105127.97



32

Annual report 2013-14: Atlas Jewellery India Limited

(formerly known as Gee El Woollens Limited)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost conventions on accrual basis in accordance with the

Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) read with

the General Circular 15/2013 dated 13th September, 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect of Section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India.

b. Consistency

The foregoing accounting policies are applied consistently except as otherwise stated in the Notes to Accounts.

c. Fixed Assets

a. The valuation part on fixed assets includes cost of acquisition, installation charges and all cost incidental

thereto

b. Depreciation has been provided on fixed assets according to the WDV rates prescribed in schedule –XIV of the

Companies Act, 1956.

d. Expenses Recognition

Expenses are accounted for on Accrual basis and provision are made for all known Liabilities except ROC fees.

e.  Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statement requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect

the amounts reported in the financial statements and notes thereto. Differences between actual results and estimates

are recognised in the period in which they are materialised.

f.  Provision for Deferred and Current tax

Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of the

Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred Tax resulting from “timing difference” between book and taxable profit is accounted for

using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. The

deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that the

assets will be realised in future.

18. Contingent Liabilities: The Company has no Contingent Liabilities.

19. None of the employees of the company was in receipt of a remuneration exceeding Rs.24,00,000/- per annum or

Rs.2,00,000/- per month, if employed for part of the year.

20.  In the opinion of management current assets, loans and advances have a value on realization at least equal to the

amounts at which these are stated in the balance sheet. Provisions for all liabilities are adequate and neither short

nor excess of the amount considered reasonable.

21. Balances of Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors, Bank Balance and Loans & advances are subject to confirmation.

22. The company has not made any provision for the listing fees payable to the various stock exchanges in the books of

accounts.
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23. In pursuant to Accounting Standards (A-18) “Related Party Disclosures” that the   Company has make transactions

with the related party during the year.

PARTICULARS RELATED PARTY NATURE AMOUNT

Atlas Jewellery Private Limited Sister Concern Advances Received 41,23,935.00

24.     Managerial Remuneration Provided/ Paid  - Rs Nil

25.     Payment/ Remuneration to Auditors:-

C Y P Y

Audit Fees 50,000.00 15,000.00

Service Tax 6,180.00 1,545.00

56,180.00 16,545.00

26. CIF/ Expenditure in Foreign Currency  —   Rs. 73,60,922.13 ( PY Nil)

Earning in Foreign Currency                    — Rs. 72, 96, 71,379.4 (PY Nil)

27. Earning per share

Net Profit (After Tax) Rs 1,62,06,496.60

No. of Shares 506,54,533

Basic/ Diluted EPS 0.32

28. Previous Year’s figures have been re-grouped/re-arranged wherever necessary to render them comparable with the

current year’s figures.
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29. ABSTRACT OF THE BALANCE SHEET AND COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE:

Registration Details

Registration No. 131289

State Code 55

Balance Sheet date 31.03.2014

Capital Raised During the Year (AMT. IN Rs.)

Public Issue Nil

Rights Issue Nil

Bonus Issue Nil

Private Placement 650,290,662.00 (Including 185,797,332.00 as premium)

Position of Mobilisation and Development of Funds (Amount in Rs.)

Total Equity and Liabilities 752119247.06

Total Assets 752119247.06

Equity and Liabilities

Paid up Capital 507115330.00

Reserve & Surplus 177440079.99

Non Current Liabilities 233000.00

Current Liabilities 24141666.06

Assets

Non Current Assets 15280850.75

Current Assets 736838396.31

Performance of Company (Amount In Rs.)

Turnover/Income 729671379.40

Total Expenditure 712115512.63

Profit/(Loss) before tax & Exceptional Item 17555866.77

Exceptional Item -

Profit/(Loss) before tax 17555866.77

Tax Expense 1349370.17

Profit/(Loss) after tax 16206496.60

Earnings per share (Rs.) 0.32

Dividend Rate -

As per our report of even date.

For A Kay Mehra & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No. 050004C

DEEPAK SUNEJA

Partner

M No. 501957

Place: New Delhi

Date : 28.05.2014

For  and  on  behalf  of  the  Board of Directors of

ATLAS JEWELLERY INDIA LIMITED

(FORMERLY GEE EL WOOLLENS LIMITED)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

M.M.RAMACHANDRAN INDIRA RAMACHANDRAN ARUN CHANDRAN K.

CHAIRMAN & DIRECTOR  DIRECTOR COMPANY SECRETARY
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2014

 31.03.2014 31.03.2013

I)Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net profit before tax, and extraordinary item               17555866.77               (312706.97)

Adjustments For:

Depreciation 20438.86       27579.00

Advance Tax paid during the Year      (1514100.00)             16062205.63     (207903.00) (493030.97)

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 16062205.63 (493030.97)

Decrease(Increase)  in Sundry Debtors (722678393.58) 0.00

Decrease(Increase) in Short Term loans & Advances (24367.00) 58003.00

Increase( Decrease) in Other Current Liability 18595236.88 (115062.68)

Increase(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings 4123935.00 (699983588.70) (2550000.00) (2607059.68)

Net Cash From Operating Activity(A) (683921383.07) (3100090.65)

II) Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Decrease in Long Term Loan & Advances 2366000.00 3016792.00

Net Cash From Investing Activity(B ) 2366000.00 3016792.00

III) Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Allotment Money in Arrears Received                                       0.00 19500.00

Issue of Share Capital    650290662.00               0.00

Application Money Pending allotment                             43189171.00 693479833.00 0.00 19500.00

Net Cash From Financing Activity( C) 693479833.00 19500.00

Net Increase in Cash And Cash equivalents(A+B+C) 11924449.93 (63798.65)

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 169847.63 233646.28

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 12094297.56 169847.63

As per our report of even date.

For A Kay Mehra & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No. 050004C

DEEPAK SUNEJA

Partner

M No. 501957

Place: New Delhi

Date : 28.05.2014

For  and  on  behalf  of  the  Board of Directors of

ATLAS JEWELLERY INDIA LIMITED

(FORMERLY GEE EL WOOLLENS LIMITED)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

M.M.RAMACHANDRAN INDIRA RAMACHANDRAN ARUN CHANDRAN K.

CHAIRMAN & DIRECTOR  DIRECTOR COMPANY SECRETARY
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Notice

Notice is hereby given that the 24th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of Atlas Jewellery India Limited will be

held on Tuesday, the 8th day of July, 2014 at 10:00 AM at Sigol Hall, Fraser Suits, Plot no. 4A, District Centre, Mayur Vihar,

Phase I, New Delhi-110091 to transact the following business:

Ordinary Businesses

(1) To consider and adopt the audited “financial statement of the Company for the “financial year ended March 31, 2014,

the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

(2) To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Indira Ramachandran (DIN: 05304935), who retires by rotation at this Annual

General Meeting and being eligible has offered herself for re-appointment.

(3) To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without

modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT M/s. A. Kay Mehra & Co., Chartered Accountants (having firm Registration No. 050004C), be and are

hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General

Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company at a remuneration and on the other

terms and conditions as may be fixed by the Board of Directors.

Special Businesses

(4) Appointment of Mr. Gaurav Goswami as an independent director

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary

Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof

for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement Mr.

Gaurav Goswami (holding DIN 05251074), a non executive independent Director of the Company whose term of office

was liable to be determined by retirement of director by rotation, who has submitted a declaration that he meets the

criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby

appointed as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from July 08, 2014 for a period of up to five years

from the date of appointment.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or the Company Secretary, be and are hereby authorised to settle

any question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to this resolution and to do all such acts, deeds and

things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution”

(5) Appointment of Mr. Lukoo Sugunan Madathiparambil as an independent director

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary

Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof

for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement Mr.

Lukoo Sugunan Madathiparambil (holding DIN 06587723), a non executive independent Director of the Company

whose term of office was liable to be determined by retirement of director by rotation, who has submitted a declaration

that he meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for appointment,

be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from July 08, 2014 for a period of

up to five years from the date of appointment.”
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or the Company Secretary, be and are hereby authorised to settle

any question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to this resolution and to do all such acts, deeds and

things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution”

(6) Appointment of Mr. Ashish Srivastava as an independent director

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary

Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof

for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement Mr.

Ashish Srivastava (holding DIN 00534207), in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under

Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is

hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from July 08, 2014 to hold office for 5 (five)

consecutive years for a term up to five years from the date of his appointment.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or the Company Secretary, be and are hereby authorised to settle

any question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to this resolution and to do all such acts, deeds and

things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution.”

(7) To confirm the appointment of Mr. Ajith Muruleedharan Kovooril as the Managing Director of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary

Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Ajith Muruleedharan Kovooril (DIN 06833443) who was appointed as an Additional  Director of

the Company with effect from 9th June, 2014 and also as a Managing Director of the Company by the Board subject to

the approval of shareholders in general meeting in terms of Sections 161 196, 197, 203, Schedule V and other

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time

being in force) and who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a

Managing Director of the Company, for a period of one year commencing from 9th June, 2014 to 9th June 2015” who

shall be liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval be and is hereby accorded to the remuneration, perquisites, benefits and amenities

payable as per the terms and conditions of the and as set out in the statement annexed to the Notice including the

following:

Remuneration:

A. Basic Salary:

Not exceeding Rupees 50,000 (Rupees fifty thousand only) per month with an increment not exceeding 20% per six

month at the discretion of the Board of Directors of the Company not exceeding the limits specified under Schedule V

to the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof;

B. Commission:

The Managing Director will not be paid any commission. However Board may pay at, if so decided by the Board, in their

sole discretion a commission not exceeding 0.25% on the net profit of the Company for each financial year as

calculated under Section 198 and such other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, as may be

determined by the Board of Directors from time to time.
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C. Perquisites

No perquisites will be provided to the Managing Director except reimbursement of telephone expenses made by the

Managing Director.

D. Benefits and Amenities

Gratuity: Benefits in accordance with the rules and regulations in force in the Company from time to time.

Leave: Leave on full pay and allowances at the rate of one month for every eleven months of service with liberty to

accumulate such leave for a period of three months. Leave encashment for a maximum of three months accumulated

leave to be permitted at the end of the term. In addition he shall be entitled to Sick Leave as per the policy of the

Company.

Loan and Other Schemes: Benefits under loan and other schemes in accordance with the practices, rules and regulations

in force in the Company from time to time subject to applicable laws.

Other benefits and amenities: Such other benefits and amenities as may be provided by the Company to other senior

officers from time to time.

Reimbursement of costs, charges and expenses: The Company shall pay or reimburse to the Managing Director and he

shall be entitled to be paid and/or to be reimbursed by the Company all costs, charges and expenses that may have

been or may be incurred by him for the purpose of or on behalf of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT The Board is empowered to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said appointment

and / or remuneration as it may deem fit and as may be acceptable to Mr. Ajith Muruleedharan Kovooril subject to the

same not exceeding the limits specified under Schedule V to the Companies Act 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to settle any question,

difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to this resolution, do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may

be necessary and sign and execute all documents or writings as may be necessary, proper or expedient for the purpose

of giving effect to this resolution and for matters concerned therewith or incidental thereto”.

(8) Issue of Equity Shares of the Company on Preferential Basis to the Mr. M. M. Ramachandran

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 62 read with section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read

together with relevant Rules thereunder and other applicable provisions, if any, of the said Act, SEBI (Issue of Capital

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 [“SEBI (ICDR) Regulations”], SEBI (Substantial Acquisition and Takeover)

Regulations 2011 [“SEBI Takeover Regulations”], and/or prescribed by the Listing Agreements entered into by the

Company with the Stock Exchanges on which the Company’s shares are listed, the applicable provisions of Foreign

Exchange Management Act (“FEMA”), rules and regulations made thereunder and in accordance with the enabling

provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the terms and conditions as

may be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall

be deemed to include any Committee of the Board to exercise the powers including the powers conferred by this

Resolution) and also further subject to such approval, permission, sanction of appropriate authorities, as may be

required, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board to create, issue, offer and

allot 50,000,000 (Five Crore Only) Equity Shares of face value of Re. 10/- each fully paid up at a price of Rs 20 (twenty)

per Equity share (inclusive of a Share premium of Rs. 10 (ten) per Equity Share determined in accordance with SEBI

(ICDR) Regulations to Mr. Mathukkara Moothedath Ramachandran (M.M. Ramachandran), with below mentioned

details on preferential allotment basis in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the time

being in force in this regard:
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Name of the Proposed Allottee Status No of Equity Shares proposed Amount to be invested

to be allotted

Mr. Mathukkara Moothedath Promoter Group. 50,000,000 (five crore) 1,000,000,000

Ramachandran Mr. M. M. (one hundred Crore only)

Ramachandran is also

the Director and

Chairman of the

Company

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the “Relevant date” for determining the price of the Equity Shares in accordance the SEBI (ICDR)

Regulations shall be Friday, 6th June, 2014, (As per SEBI (ICDR) Regulations being thirty days prior to the date of this Annual

General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company for considering the proposed preferential issue i.e. 8th July 2014.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the entire consideration be received by the Company from the proposed allottee as advance

subscription money at the time of application.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Equity Shares to be issued and allotted shall rank pari-passu with the existing Equity Shares of the

Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to take necessary steps for listing of the abovementioned

Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges where the Equity Shares of the Company are listed, as per the terms and conditions of

the Listing Agreement and other applicable Guidelines, Rules and Regulations and the Company Secretary and all directors

are empowered to execute all the documents in this regard.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013, the premium (Rs.10 per Equity share) to be

received on the issue and allotment of 50,000,000 (five crore) Equity Shares of the Company aforesaid be transferred to the

“Securities Premium Account” of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and execute

all documents as may be necessary in this regard and to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred, to any Committee

or any one or more Directors and/or the Company Secretary of the Company.”

By order of the Board

For Atlas Jewellery India Limited

S/d

Chandan Mahapatra

                        Company Secretary & CFO

Delhi, 9th June, 2014, Delhi

Notes:

(i) The relevant Explanatory Statement and reasons in respect of proposed Special Resolution pursuant to Section 102 of

the Companies Act, 2013 are annexed hereto.

(ii) EVERY MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF

HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

(iii) PROXIES IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DULY COMPLETED, STAMPED (IF APPLICABLE) AND SIGNED AND MUST BE

DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FOR HOLDING THE

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING.
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(iv) Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the meeting are requested to send a

certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the

Meeting.

(v) Members desirous of obtaining any information as regards accounts of the Company are requested to write to the

Company at least one week before the Meeting, so that the information required will be made available at the Annual

General Meeting.

(vi) Documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement are open for inspection at the

Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours (10:00 am to 6:00 pm) on all working days except

Saturdays and Sundays (including Public Holidays) up to the date of the Annual General Meeting.

(vii) The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from July 01, 2014 to, July 08,

2014 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of annual closing and AGM. The cut-off date for the purpose of AGM is June

06, 2014.

(viii) Members holding shares in physical form are requested to immediately notify change in their address, if any, to the

Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company, viz., Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pvt. Ltd ,Beetal house, 3rd Flr,

99, Mandangir, B/h Local Shopping Centre, Near Dada Harsukdas Mandir, New Delhi,  110062, quoting their Folio

Number(s).

(ix) Physical copies of the Notice and Annual Report for 2014 are being sent to all the members in the permitted mode

alongwith Attendance Slip and Proxy Form interalia indicating the process of E-voting. Electronic copy of the Notice

and Annual Report for 2014 is also being sent to all the members who’s Email IDs are registered with the Company/

Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so

far are requested to register their e-mail addresses for receiving all communications including Annual Report, Notices,

Circular, etc. from the Company in electronic mode.

(x) Members/Proxies are requested to bring the Attendance Slip(s) duly filled in.

(xi) As a measure of austerity, copies of the Annual Report will not be distributed at the Annual General Meeting. Members

are therefore, requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the Meeting.

(xii) Pursuant to the requirements of Corporate Governance under Clause 49 of Listing Agreement entered into with the

Stock Exchange(s), the brief particulars of all the Directors proposed to be re-appointed, nature of their expertise in

specific functional areas, names of companies in which they hold directorships and memberships/chairmanships of

Board/Committees, shareholding and relationships between Directors inter-se, are provided in the Directors’ Report

forming part of the Annual Report. Their details are also provided in the explanatory statement to the notice annexed

herewith.

(xiii) Members may also note that the Notice of the 24th Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report for 2014 will also

be available on the Company’s website www.atlasjewelleryindia.com for their download. The physical copies of the

aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company’s Registered Office for inspection during normal

business hours on working days. For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the

Company’s designated email id: glwldel@gmail.com.

(xiv) In compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules thereunder, the Company is also

required to conduct the voting process electronically. The business to be transacted at the AGM may be transacted

through electronic voting system and the Company is providing the facility for voting by electronic means.

Process for e-voting:

The Company has signed an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating e-voting to

enable the Shareholders to cast their vote electronically.
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In case of members receiving e-mail:

(a) Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

(b) Click on “Shareholders” tab to cast your votes.

(c) Now, select the Electronic Voting Sequence Number - “EVSN” along with “Atlas Jewellery India Limited” from the drop

down menu and click on “SUBMIT”. The EVSN is provided in the attendance slip.

(d) If you are holding shares in Demat form and have already voted earlier on www.evotingindia.com for a voting of any

Company, then your existing login id and password are to be used. If you are a first time user follow the steps given

below.

(e) Now, fill up the following details in the appropriate boxes:

User ID For shareholders holding shares in Demat Form:- a) For NSDL :– 8 Character DP ID

followed by 8 Digits Client ID b) For CDSL:– 16 digits beneficiary ID c) For Shareholders

holding shares in Physical Form: Folio Number registered with the Company

PAN* Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department when prompted

by the system while e-voting (applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical

shareholders)

DOB# Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for

the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.

Dividend Bank Details Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the company

records for the said demat account or folio.

* Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company / Depository Participant are requested to use Default

Character ATLAS1989L. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT”.

# Please enter any one of the details in order to login. Incase either of the details are not recorded with the depository please

enter the No. of shares held by you as on 6th June 2014 in the Dividend Bank details field.

(f) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(g) Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the EVSN selection screen. However, members

holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily

enter their login password in the new password field. The new password has to be minimum eight characters consisting

of at least one upper case (A-Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric value (0-9) and a special character(@ # $ %& *).

Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company

on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly

recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password

confidential. Kindly note that this changed password is to be also used by the Demat holders for voting for resolutions

for the Company or any other Company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that Company opts for e-voting

through CDSL platform.

(h) Click on the relevant EVSN on which you choose to vote.

(i) On the voting page, you will see Resolution Description and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the

option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you

dissent to the Resolution.
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(j) Click on the “Resolutions File Link” if you wish to view the entire Resolutions.

(k) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If

you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your

vote.

(l) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

In case of members receiving the physical copy of Notice of AGM [for members whose e-mail IDs are not registered

with the company/ depository participant(s) or requesting physical copy]:

(m) Please follow all steps from sl. no. (a) to sl. no. (l) above, to cast vote.

(n) Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on to https://

www.evotingindia.co.in and register themselves, link their account which they wish to vote on and then cast their vote.

They should upload a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and POA in favour of the Custodian who they have

authorised to vote on their behalf, in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the vote.

(o) The voting period begins on Wednesday, 2nd July, 2014 and ends on Friday, 4th July, 2014 at 6:00 p.m. During this period

shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date

(record date) of 6th June, 2014, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for

voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the shareholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed to

change it subsequently.

(p) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”)

and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or beetel@beetelfinancial.com or glwldel@gmail.com.

(q) Voting can be exercised only by the shareholder or his/her duly constituted attorney or, in case of bodies corporate,

the duly authorized person.

(r) A member need not use all his/her votes.

(s) The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the

Company as on the cut-off date (record date) of June 6, 2014.

(t) Mr. Parveen Rastogi of M/s Parveen Rastogi & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, has been appointed as the

Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

(u) The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding 3 (three) working days from the conclusion of the e-voting period

unblock the votes in the presence of at least 2 (two) witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make a

Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

(v) The Results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. The Results declared alongwith the Scrutinizer’s

Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.atlasjewelleryindia.com and on the website of CDSL within

two(2) days of passing of the resolutions at the AGM of the Company and also communicated to the Bombay Stock

Exchange.

By order of the Board

For Atlas Jewellery India Limited

S/d

Chandan Mahapatra

                        Company Secretary & CFO

Delhi, 9th June, 2014, Delhi
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Explanatory Statement
(Pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013)

Item No 4, 5 and 6

Details of Directors seeking appointment in the Annual General Meeting (Pursuant to Clause 49 (IV) (G)(i) of the Listing

Agreement)

Mr. Gaurav Goswami and Mr. Lukoo Sugunan Madathiparambil are the present independent directors of the Company liable

to retire by rotation. Under the Companies Act, 2013, it is required that independent directors shall not be liable to retire by

rotation and be appointed for a fixed term. Further, Mr. Ashish Srivastava is proposed to be appointed as an independent

director under the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 in this annual general meeting. As per Section 149

of the Companies Act, 2013, an independent director should be appointed in by the members in shareholders meeting.

Section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 states that every listed public company shall have at least one-third of the total

number of directors as Independent Directors. Section 149(5) also provides that every company existing on or before the

date of commencement of this Act shall, within one year from such commencement or from the date of notification of the

rules in this regard as may be applicable; comply with the requirements of the provisions of sub-section (4). Section 149 (10)

of the Companies Act, 2013, inter alia, provides that subject to the provisions of Section 152, an Independent Director shall

hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of a company. It is further clarified in the proviso to sub-

sections (10) and (11) of Section 149 of the Act that, any tenure of an Independent Director on the date of commencement of

this Act shall not be counted as a term under those sub-sections (10) and (11).

Your Board is of the opinion that all of the above mentioned 3 Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Companies Act

for appointment as Independent Directors of the Company and they have also given their consent for being appointed as an

independent director. Details in respect of all three Directors, who are proposed to be appointed as Independent Directors,

are furnished in the below table of this explanation. Your Board considers that their continued association with the

Company would be of immense benefit to the Company. In view thereof, your Board has recommended them to be appointed

as Independent Directors as per the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The Company has received

notices in writing from members’ alongwith the deposit of requisite amount under Section 160 of the Act proposing the

candidatures of each of Mr. Gaurav Goswami, Mr. Lukoo and Mr. Ashish Srivastava as Directors of the Company.

Accordingly, your Board has recommended for approval of the shareholders, under Agenda item nos. 4 to 6 of the

accompanying notice, the appointment of the aforementioned Directors as Independent Directors pursuant to Section 149

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder, with their respective term of office to be for a period of upto

five years with effect from the date of this annual general meeting.

Concerned Directors are interested in their respective resolutions being related to their own appointments. Other than the

aforesaid, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or

interested in the Resolutions as set out in item Nos. 4 to 6 of the accompanying Notice. None of the aforesaid Directors are

related inter se to each other.

The profile of each of the aforesaid directors is given below. This explanatory statement may also be regarded as disclosure

under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.
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Name of the Director Mr. Gaurav Goswami Mr. Lukoo Sugunan Mr. Ashish Srivastava

Madathiparambil

Date of Birth 17/05/1974 17/06/1982 27/08/1975

Date of appointment 27/05/2013 23/05/2013 To  be appointed in this AGM

Expertise in Specific Having more than 15 Having 10 years of Having more than 10 years of

Functional area years of experience on experience in, sales, experience as an entrepreneur

accounts & financial marketing & in business management,

matters as a distribution operations.

professional and advisor

to many companies

Qualification Master of Business Bachelor of Commerce B. Tech. from Indian Institute of

Administration Technology, Kanpur

Board Membership of other NIL NIL NIL

Public Limited companies as

on March 31, 2014

Directorship in Unlisted AP Finsmart Advisory NIL Vilabs Technologies Private

Indian Companies/ Foreign Services Private Limited Limited

Companies Dimensions Innovation

Companies & listed Foreign Labs Private Limited

Candid E-governance

Consultants Private Limited

Campus Labs Private Limited

Disha Realnetwork Private

Limited

Chairman/ Member of the Audit Committee Audit Committee NIL

Committee of the Board (Chairman) (Member)

of Directors of the Shareholder/Investor Shareholder/Investor

Company as on March Grievance and Share Grievance and Share

31, 2014 Transfer Committee Transfer Committee

(Member) (Member)

Chairman/ Member of the NIL NIL NIL

Committee of the Board of

Directors of the any other

Company than Atlas

Jewellery India Limited

as on March 31, 2014

Number of Shares held in NIL NIL NIL

the Company as on

March 31, 2014
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Item No. 7 Appointment of Mr. Ajith Muruleedharan Kovooril as the Managing Director of the Company.

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 9th June, 2014 based on the recommendations of the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee, approved appointment of Mr. Ajith Muruleedharan Kovooril (DIN 06833443) as an additional

director of the Company as well as Managing Director of the Company in terms of the provisions of Section 196 of the

Companies Act for a period of one (1) year commencing from 9th June 2014 to 9th June 2015 liable to retire by rotation. The

Board also approved the terms and conditions of his appointment including remuneration, as recommended by the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, in accordance with the provisions of Sections 197, 203, Schedule V and other

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), subject

to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Ajith Muruleedharan Kovooril (Date of birth: 05/05/1985) is an IT graduate having more than 6 years of versatile

experience in IT, sales and marketing. His last work was with Atlas Jewellery Private Limited (in the Gem & Jewellery Sector)

as a Sales and Marketing manager where he worked for two years. He has also been managing administration of whole

affairs of the Atlas Jewellery Private Limited and all the sales and marketing affairs. He is not holding any shares in the

Company. He is not a director in any other company and neither is a member of any committee in the Company or any other

company.

The terms and conditions as to the appointment of Mr. Ajith Muruleedharan Kovooril are briefly mentioned as under:

(i) The appointment of Mr. Ajith Muruleedharan Kovooril as the Managing Director shall be subject to the supervision

and control of the Board of Directors of the Company. The Managing Director shall manage the business and affairs of

the Company and exercise such powers as are vested in the Managing Director by the Board of Directors subject to any

limitation or conditions which may be prescribed by the Act or the provisions of Memorandum and/ or Articles of

Association of the Company or the Board of Directors or by the Company in General Meeting. The Managing director

shall have delegatation delegate powers subject to any limitation or conditions which may be prescribed by the Act or

the provisions of Memorandum and/ or Articles of Association of the Company or the Board of Directors or by the

Company in General Meeting.

(ii) The Managing Director of the Company shall devote his whole time and attention to the business of the Company and

shall use his best endeavour to promote its interest and welfare, excluding cases where he is appointed or nominated

as a Director on the Board of any of the Company’s subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and other associate Companies, if any.

(iii) The Managing Director shall maintain confidentiality of as any information or knowledge in connection with the

business affairs of the Company, obtained by him during the course of his tenure as the Managing Director or at any

time thereafter.

(iv) The Managing Director after ceasing to be a Managing Director shall not either on his behalf or on behalf of any other

person solicit business in competition with the Company from any clients of the Company.

(v) Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the

Managing Director, while he continues to hold office of the Managing Director, shall be liable to retire by rotation. He

shall be immediately cease to be the Managing Director, if he ceases to hold office of a Director due to any cause.

(vi) The employment relationship may be terminated by the Managing Director or the Company by giving, not less than two

calendar months notice in writing. The Company shall be entitled to terminate the employment forthwith at any time

by paying him two months’ basic salary in lieu of such notice.

(vii) The scope and quantum of remuneration, perquisites, benefits and amenities specified hereinabove, may be enhanced,

enlarged, widened, altered or varied by the Board of Directors in the light of and in conformity with any amendments

to the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and/ or the rules and regulations made thereunder and/ or such

guidelines as may be notified by the regulatory authorities from time to time.
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Mr. Ajith Muruleedharan Kovooril satisfies all the conditions as set out in Part I of Schedule V as also under sub-section 13

of Section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013 for being eligible to be appointed as a Managing Director of the Company. He is

not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors are of the opinion that the appointment of Mr. Ajith Muruleedharan Kovooril as the Managing

Director is in the best interest of the Company and accordingly, recommend the resolution set out in Items No. 7 for approval

of the members.

Other than Ajith Muruleedharan Kovooril and his relatives, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial personnel or their

relatives are interested or concerned in the proposed Resolution at Item No. 7 of this Notice. This explanatory statement may

also be regarded as disclosure under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Item No. 8 Preferential Allotment of Equity Shares to Mr. M. M. Ramachandran on private placement basis.

As you are aware that after the change in the management of the Company last year, the Company has became commercially

operational and started its business activities mainly export of Gems & Jewellery from the last quarter of the financial year

2013-14. The Company wanted to expand its business scale and including execution of other business expansion plans is

desirous of opening showrooms at appropriate places for sale of Gem & Jewellery items. To meet its fund requirements for

business expansion, the Board of Directors suggests that such requirements of the funds be arranged by issue of further

Equity Shares of the Company to Mr. M.M. Ramachandran, who belongs to the Promoter Group and who is also one of the

Directors and Chairman of Atlas Jewellery India Limited. Therefore, it is proposed to issue 50,000,000 (Five Crore Only)

Equity Shares of face value of Re. 10/- each to Mr. M. M. Ramachandran as mentioned in the Resolution at a price of Rs. 20

(twenty)  per Equity Share (inclusive of a Share premium of Rs. 10 (ten) per Equity Share in such manner and on such terms

and conditions as prescribed under the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 [“SEBI (ICDR)

Regulations”] on Preferential basis in accordance with the Section  62 read with section 42 and other applicable sections of

the Companies Act, 2013 and such Rules as may be applicable. The Issue price of Equity Shares is determined in accordance

with SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

The details of the issue and other particulars as required in terms of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations as well as Companies Act,

2013 as amended from time to time are mentioned herein below:

(i) Object of the preferential issue:

The object of the issue is to augment the business expansion plan as stated above and working capital requirement of

the Company and for general corporate use for Company’s growth.

(ii) Intention of Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company to subscribe to the proposed

preferential offer:

Mr. M. M. Ramachandran is one of the Director’s and Chairman of the Company and also belongs to Promoter Group

of the Company. Apart from the aforesaid, no shares are being offered to any other Directors or Key Managerial

Personnel or relatives of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

(iii) The Shareholding pattern of the Company before and after the preferential issue:

The Shareholding Pattern of the Company before and after the issue of above Equity Shares on preferential basis as per the

provisions of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations is based on the shareholding as on June 06, 2014, being the latest practicable

date on which the data was available prior to the approval and issuance of the notice to the shareholders has been

provided hereunder:
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S. No. Shareholding Pattern Pre Issue Post Issue

No. of Shares held % No. of Shares %

A. Promoters Holding:     

 1 Indian

Individuals - - - -

 Bodies Corporate (Atlas Jewellery Private Ltd) 1636044 3.230 1636044 1.625

 Sub Total 1636044  3.230 1636044 1.625

2  Foreign Promoters - - 50000000 49.675

Sub Total A 1636044 3.230* 51636044 51.300#

B. Non Promoter Holding:   

 1 Institutional Investors - - - -

 2 Non Institution

Private Corporate Bodies 46,519,680 91.837 46,519,680 46.217

Directors and Relatives - - - -

Indian Public 2461809 4.859 2461809 2.446

Others (including NRI’s) 37,000 0.073 37,000 0.037

 Sub Total (B) 49,018,489 96.770* 49,018,489 48.700#

Grand Total (A+B) 50,654,533 100 100654533 100

Note: * The Percentage has been calculated on the basis of Pre Preferential Capital.

# The Percentage has been calculated on the basis of Post Preferential Capital

The table shows the expected shareholding pattern of the Company upon consummation of the allotment and assumes

that holding of all other shareholders shall remain the same post issue as they were on the date on which the pre issue

shareholding pattern was prepared.

The Company will ensure compliance with all applicable laws and regulations including the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations

at the time of allotment of Equity Shares on Preferential Basis to Mr. M. M. Ramachandran.

Since there is no prior shareholding of the proposed allottee, holding of pre-preferential shareholding in De-mat form

is not applicable. Mr. M. M. Ramachandran. Mr. Ramachandran has not sold any shares of the Company during six

months from the date of this notice.

(iv) Proposed time within which the preferential issue shall be completed:

The allotment pursuant to the Special Resolution shall be completed within a period of 15 days from the date of

passing of this Resolution, provided that, if any approval or permission as required by any regulatory authority for

allotment is pending, the period of 15 days shall be counted from the date of such approval or permission, as the case

may be.
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(v) The identity of the proposed allottee(s), the percentage of post preferential issue capital that may be held by them,

change in control, if any, in the Company consequent to the preferential issue:

S. No. Name of the proposed allottees Category No. of equity Pre issue % Post issue %

shares to be shareholding shareholding

issued

1 Mr. M. M. Ramachandran Promoter 5,00,00,000 NIL NIL 500,00,000 49.675

Group

Mr. M. M. Ramachandran is one

of the directors and Chairman of

the Company and belongs to

Promoter Group of the Company.

Address: Dubai: Flat No 313, AL

Rais Shopping Center, Dubai

India:  Mathukkara Moothedathu,

Ragamalikapuram,

Thrissur – 680004, Kerala, India

Atlas Jewellery Private Limited, along with Mr. M. M. Ramachandran will continue to be in Control of the Company and

there will not be any other change in the Control and management of the Company except that Mr. Ramachandran will

also be in direct control of the Company alonwith Atlas Jewellery Private Limited. However due to such preferential

allotment, SEBI Takeover provisions will be complied with, if and as applicable.

(vi) Relevant Date:

The Relevant Date for the purpose of pricing of the Equity Shares shall be 6th June 2014, Friday, being a date which is

30 days prior to the date of AGM to be held in terms with SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

(vii) Pricing of Equity Shares:

The price of the Equity Shares has been calculated in accordance with the provisions of Chapter VII of the SEBI (ICDR)

Regulations. The price of the Equity Shares arrived at is Rs. 20 per Equity Share (i.e. Face value of Re. 10/- each and

premium of Rs. 10/- per Equity Share).

(viii) Undertaking to re-compute the price, if required:

The Company hereby undertakes that it shall re-compute the price of the Equity Shares in terms of the provisions of the

SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, in case it is required to do so.

(ix) Undertaking to put Equity Shares under lock-in till the re-computed price is paid:

The Company undertakes that if the amount payable on re-computation of the price is not paid within the time

stipulated in the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the Equity Shares shall continue to be locked-in till such time such amount

is paid by the allottee.

(x) Basis of valuation of shares:

The Company is a listed company, hence the price of Equity share has been calculated in accordance with the

provisions of Chapter VII of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and hence the price of the Equity share is not required to be

determined by a registered valuer.

(xi) Earlier allotment on preferential basis:

During Financial Year 2014-15, the Company has not offered any Securities to any person on preferential basis.
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(xii) Lock-in period:

Out of total 5,00,00,000 equity shares to be allotted on preferential basis to Mr. M. M. Ramachandran, 2,01,31,000

equity shares shall be subject to lock-in for a period of 3 year and remaining 2,98,69,000 equity shares shall be

subject to lock-in for a period of 1 year from the date of trading approval or for such other period as may be prescribed

under Regulation 78(1) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

(xiii) Scrutinizer

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 9th June, 2014 has appointed Mr. Parveen Rastogi, a

Practising Company Secretary from Parveen Rastogi & Co. (Company Secretaries), as Scrutinizer for conducting the e-

voting process in accordance with law. The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of e-voting shall be final.

(xiv) Certificate from Statutory Auditors:

A Certificate from M/s. A. Kay Mehra & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company, as required

under Clause 73(2) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations will be made available for inspection at the Registered Office of the

Company between 10:00 A.M. to 6:00 P.M. on any working day till the date of AGM. The said certificate will also be

available on the Company’s website at www.atlasjewelleryindia.com.

In terms of provisions of Section 62(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Section 42 and (Share Capital and

Debentures) Rules, 2014, and Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, approval of the

shareholders through Special Resolution is required for issue of Equity Shares on on preferential placement basis.

Accordingly, the consent of the shareholders is being sought, pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act and SEBI

(ICDR) Regulations to issue and allot Equity Shares on Preferential basis as stated in the Resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends passing of the Special Resolution as set out in the Notice.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial personnel or relatives of Directors or Key Managerial personnel of the Company

except Mr. M. M. Ramachandran and Mrs. Indira Ramachandran being the directors and shareholders of Atlas

Jewellery Private Limited, the promoter company of the Company and their relatives, is in any way concerned or

interested in the said Resolution.

By order of the Board

  For Atlas Jewellery India Limited

S/d

                              Chandan Mahapatra

 Company Secretary& CFO

9th June, 2014

New Delhi
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, TUESDAY, JULY 08, 2014

ATTENDANCE SLIP

I/we hereby confirm and record my/our presence at the Annual General Meeting of Atlas Jewellery India Limited to be held

on Tuesday, July 08, 2014, at 10.00 A.M. at Sigol Hall, Fraser Suits, Plot no. 4A, District Centre, Mayur Vihar, Phase I, New

Delhi-110091.

Folio No.: DP ID*: Client ID*:

Full name and address of the

Shareholder/Proxy Holder

(in block letters)

Joint Holder 1

Joint Holder 2

No. of Shares Held

Signature of Shareholder/Proxy

Note: Shareholders attending the Meeting in person or by proxy are requested to complete the attendance slip and hand

over at the entrance of the premise.

*Applicable for shareholders holding shares in electronic form.

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

E VOTING SEQUENCE NUMBER USER ID PASSWORD

(EVSN)

   140613009 For shareholders holding shares in Demat Form:- Please refer e-voting

a) For NSDL :– 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 instructions given in the

Digits Client ID notice

b) For CDSL:– 16 digits beneficiary ID

c) For Shareholders holding shares in Physical

Form: Folio Number registered with the Company

Note: Please read the instructions printed under the Note to the Notice of 24th AGM dated June 09, 2014. The Voting period

starts from Wednesday, 2nd July, 2014 at 10:00 a.m., and will end on Friday, 4th July, 2014 at 6:00 p.m. The voting module shall

be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, TUESDAY, JULY 08, 2014

PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration)

Rules, 2014]

Name of the member(s)

Registered Address

Email ID:

Folio No./Client ID

DP ID

I/ We being the member(s) of ______________________shares of the above named Company hereby appoint:

1 Name:

Address:

Email ID: Or failing him

2 Name:

Address:

Email ID: Or failing him

3 Name:

Address:

Email ID: Or failing him

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/ us and on my/ behalf at the 24th Annual General Meeting of the

Company to be held on Tuesday, 7th July, 2014 at 10.00 A.M.. at igol Hall, Fraser Suits, Plot no. 4A, District Centre, Mayur

Vihar, Phase I, New Delhi-110091 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

No. Resolution For Against

1 Ordinary Resolutions

2 To consider and adopt the audited “financial statement of the  Company for the “financial

year ended March 31, 2014, the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon

3 To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Indira Ramachandran (DIN: 05304935), who retires

by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible has offered herself for

re-appointment

3 To appoint A. Kay Mehra & Co. Chartered  Accountants as statutory auditors of the

Company and fix their remuneration
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Special Business

4 Appointment of Mr. Gaurav Goswami as an independent director

5 Appointment of Mr. Lukoo Sugunan Madathiparambil as an independent director

6 Appointment of Mr. Ashish Srivastava noop as an independent director

7 Appointment of Mr. Ajith Muruleedharan Kovooril as the Managing Director of the Company

8 Issue of 50,000,000 (five crore) Equity Shares of the Company on Preferential Basis to

the Mr. M. M. Ramachandran

Signed this ________day of _______________, 2014

________________________

(Signature of the Shareholder)

Sign across revenue stamp

______________________________                  ________________________________ _______________________________

(Signature of the first proxy holder)                 (Signature of the second proxy holder) (Signature of the third proxy holder)

Note:

(i) The proxy need not be a member

(ii) The Proxy form duly completed should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Delhi not later than

48 hours before the time of the meeting.

(iii) * Applicable for investor holding shares in electronic form.

Affix
Revenue

Stamp of
` 1/-
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